
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

March 21, 2017  5:30 pm 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman John Riggs 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) Presentation of Retirement for Dallas McPhee, Fire Inspector, Fire Department, after 

22 years of service 
 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 03-07-2017 Council Minutes 
 

6. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve APPLICATION # V 17-02-
02: Nick Stein requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 4 of the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum aggregate sign area in Sign District 
2 for 460 Northside Drive East (Tax Parcel MS72 000011 000). 
 

7. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve APPLICATION # V 17-02-
03: Nick Stein requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 4 of the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum number of building signs allowed 
per elevation in Sign District 2 for 460 Northside Drive East (Tax Parcel MS72 000011 
000). 
 

8. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve APPLICATION # V 17-02-
04: Nick Stein requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 5 of the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum aggregate sign area in Sign District 
3 for 810 Archway Drive (Tax Parcel MS74 000198 007). 
 

9. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve APPLICATION # V 17-02-
05: Nick Stein requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 5 of the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum number of building signs allowed 
per elevation in Sign District 3 for 810 Archway Drive (Tax Parcel MS74 000198 007). 
 

10. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve APPLICATION # SE 17-02-
01: Marilyn Knight requests a special exception to utilize the property located at 404 
North Avenue as a childcare center with a capacity of fifty-two (52) children in the R8 
zoning district (Tax Parcel MS40 000051 000). 
 



 
 

11. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2017-13 : A Resolution to accept 
an $8,000.00 Plate Carrier and Ballistic Plate Grant from the Statesboro Police Officers 
Foundation, Grant Number SPOF 2017-01, funding 50% of the purchase of Active 
Shooter Plate Carriers and Ballistic Plates. 
 

12. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2017-14: A Resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Statesboro declaring Statesboro as a Safe Inclusive and 
Welcoming City for All People. 
 

13. The Bulloch County Commissioners request a letter of support from the City of 
Statesboro in the application of a $750,000 grant from the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) program for a project that consists of the construction of a new 
Senior Citizens Center in Statesboro (Bulloch County), Georgia. 

 
14. Other Business from City Council 

 
15. City Managers Comments 

 
16. Public Comments (General) 

 
17. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 

“Real Estate” and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 

18. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 
March 07, 2017 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on March 07, 2017 at 9:00p.m. in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Phil 
Boyum, Jeff Yawn, John Riggs and Travis Chance.  Also present were City Manager Randy 
Wetmore, Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling and City Attorney 
Cain Smith. Councilman Sam Lee Jones joined the meeting by phone      
The meeting was called to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore. 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Jeff Yawn. 
 
Recognitions/Public Presentations  

A) Citywide Strategic Plan kickoff presentation by consultants AMEC Foster 
  
 An overview of the citywide strategic plan was presented by the consultants of AMEC Foster. 
Present was Paige Hatley, Lewis Hodges and Bill Ross. 
 

B) Recognition of the findings associated with the Statesboro Fire Department’s 
recent VFIS (Volunteer Firemen’s Insurance Services) Risk Assessment 
Survey.  

 
Fire Chief Tim Grams shared the findings of the Risk Assessment Survey as he recognized 
members of the City Shop and Fire Department for their involvement in the success of the 
survey. 
 

C) Presentation of Employee Years of Service Awards 
 
Director of Human Resource Jeff Grant, along with the Mayor and Council, presented the 15, 20 
and 25 years of service awards to numerous employees from departments throughout the City. 
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Mayor Moore stated that Councilman Jones has joined the meeting by phone and as a reminder 
as stated by the Charter, a phone vote is not counted as a vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 02-21-2017 Council Minutes 
b) 02-21-2017 Executive Session Minutes 

 



 
 

Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety. Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Recognition and Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution 2017-11: A Resolution 
honoring Sgt. John Allen Smith upon his retirement for 29 years of service for the City of 
Statesboro Police Department. 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to Adopt Resolution 2017-
11: A Resolution honoring Sgt. John Allen Smith upon his retirement of 29 years of service for 
the City of Statesboro Police Department. Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted 
in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 Mr. Allen was presented a plaque for his 29 years of service in the Police Department. Mr. Allen 
thanked everyone for allowing him to be a part of the City. 
Interim Chief of Police Rob Bryan announced a drop in reception would be held on Thursday 
afternoon. 
  
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve Alcohol License Applications: 

A)  The Library 
      Martin Medrano 

         125 Gata Drive 
          Statesboro Ga 30458 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
Detective Winskey presented evidence in regards to the information found when performing a 
background search on Martin Medrano. 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to deny the alcohol 
application for “The Library”. Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of 
the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 

B)  Little Italy 
         Frank Cortese 
         450 South Main Street 
         Statesboro Ga 30458 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
No one spoke for or against the request. 



 
 

Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve the alcohol 
application for Little Italy. Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Second Reading and Consideration of a Motion to Adopt   Ordinance 2017-07: An 
Ordinance to amend Section 6-19 of the City of Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Alcoholic 
Beverages) to modify the procedures for administrative hearings on license violations. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to adopt Ordinance 2017-
07: An Ordinance to amend Section 6-19 of the City of Statesboro Code of Ordinances 
(Alcoholic Beverages) to modify the procedures for administrative hearings on license 
violations. The motion included amending Section 13 of the proposed ordinance that was 
included in the agenda packet. The amendment should read:  (13) Appeal of a final decision 
which imposes a license suspension shall be in the form of a written appeal stating the reason(s) 
why the licensee disagrees with the decision of the Administrative Judge. The Administrative 
Judge may make a written response to said appeal.  Mayor and Council shall make a 
determination on whether or not to alter the final decision by either increasing or lessening the 
sanctions based solely on review of the original written decision, licensee’s written appeal, and 
any appeal response by the Administrative Judge. No oral argument or evidentiary hearing shall 
be allowed or considered by Mayor and Council. Any further appeal from the determination of 
Mayor and Council shall be by Petition for Certiorari to the Superior Court of Bulloch County.  
Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution 2017-07: A Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to apply for a grant from the Georgia Department of Transportation's  FY 2017 
Multimodal Safety & Access Program. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to adopt Resolution 
2017-07: A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to apply for a grant from the Georgia 
Department of Transportation’s FY 2017 Multimodal Safety & Access Program. Councilman 
Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 
vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution 2017-12: A Resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to apply for the Georgia Department of Transportation's 2017 Additional Local 
Maintenance and Improvement Grant (LMIG) for Off-System Safety. If awarded, the 
grant will be applied to the Installation of Sidewalk on East Main/S.R. 24, Installation of a 
Pedestrian Crossing on Lester Road at Statesboro High School, and restriping of city 
streets. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to adopt Resolution 2017-
12: A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for the Georgia Department of 
Transportation's 2017 Additional Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant (LMIG) for Off-



 
 

System Safety. If awarded, the grant will be applied to the Installation of Sidewalk on East 
Main/S.R. 24, Installation of a Pedestrian Crossing on Lester Road at Statesboro High School, 
and restriping of city streets. Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution 2017-08: A Resolution authorizing the 
Mayor to enter into a lease agreement on behalf of the City in the amount of $300.00 per 
year with Norfolk Southern referred to as Activity 1215027 for the purpose of a dog park.  
 
Director of DSDA Allen Muldrew spoke in favor of the request. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to adopt Resolution 2017-
08: A Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a lease agreement on behalf of the City in 
the amount of $300.00 per year with Norfolk Southern referred to as Activity 1215027 for the 
purpose of a dog park. Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution 2017-09: A Resolution authorizing the 
Mayor to enter into a lease agreement on behalf of the City in the amount of $300.00 per 
year with Norfolk Southern referred to as Activity 1215028 for the purpose of a green 
space.  
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to adopt Resolution 2017-
09: A Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a lease agreement on behalf of the City in 
the amount of $300.00 per year with Norfolk Southern referred to as Activity 1215028 for the 
purpose of a green space. Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Resolution 2017-10: A Resolution authorizing the 
waiver of any payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) by the Statesboro Housing Authority to the 
City of Statesboro for the 2016 tax year in the amount of $20,941.98. 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to adopt Resolution 2017-
10: A Resolution authorizing the waiver of any payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) by the 
Statesboro Housing Authority to the City of Statesboro for the 2016 tax year in the amount of 
$20,941.98. Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from City Council 
 
Mayor Moore announced that Dal Canady will complete his final 100 mile walk today at 11:30 
am with lunch at Gnat’s Landing. 
Director of Planning and Zoning Frank Neal stated the department will be scheduling a public 
meeting for the community to be involved in the Strategic Planning Process. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
City Managers Comments 

A) E-billing for utilities 
B) FY2018 Budget Retreat set for April 14th, 2017 

 
City Clerk Sue Starling and IT Specialist Salomon Gongalez updated Council on the e-billing 
(GO Paperless) process. The e-bills are now available for citizens to sign up and receive their 
utility bills by e-mail. They will not receive a paper bill. 
 
City Manager Randy Wetmore announced the Budget Retreat is schedule for April 14, 2017 at 
8:30 am in the Council Chambers at City Hall. 
 
Public Comments (General) None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss   “Potential Litigation” 
in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 
Mayor Moore stated there would be no Executive Session. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Yawn, Riggs and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:30 am. 



 
 CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 

STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 

Robert Cheshire, P.E.,  

Deputy City Manager 

Sue Starling, City Clerk 

 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum 

Sam Lee Jones 

Jeff Yawn 

John C. Riggs 

Travis L. Chance 

 

 

 

To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager and Sue Starling, City Clerk 

 

From: Candra Teshome, Planning & Development Specialist 

 

Date: March 9, 2017 

 

RE: March 21, 2017 City Council Agenda Item 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Zoning Ordiance: Variance 

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the variances requested by 

applications V 17-02-02 and V 17-02-03.  

 

Background: Nick Stein requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) 

Table 4 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum aggregate 

sign area in Sign District 2 for 460 Northside Drive East (Tax Parcel MS72 000011 

000) and a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 4 of the Statesboro 

Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum number of building signs allowed per 

elevation in Sign District 2 for 460 Northside Drive East (Tax Parcel MS72 000011 

000). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: Travis Chance (District 5) 

 

Attachments: Development Services Report V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 



 

 
City of Statesboro – Department of Planning & Development  

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

P.O. Box 348     (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia   30458           (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

VARIANCE REQUESTS 

460 NORTHSIDE DRIVE EAST 

LOCATION: 460 Northside Drive East 

 

REQUEST: 

Variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) 

Table 4 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance 

regarding the maximum aggregate sign area 

and the maximum number of building signs 

allowed per elevation in Sign District 2.  

APPLICANT: Nick Stein 

OWNER(S): 
McDonald’s Corporation, a Delaware 

Corporation 

ACRES: .96 acres 

PARCEL TAX  

MAP #: 
MS72 000011 000 

COUNCIL        

DISTRICT:            
District 5 (Chance) 

   

PROPOSAL: 

The applicant requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 4 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance 

regarding the maximum aggregate sign area and the maximum number of building signs allowed per elevation in Sign 
District 2 (See Exhibit A – Location Map). The applicant would like to remove the existing 67 square foot wall sign and 

replace it with an updated wordmark and building arch, with one elevation receiving two (2) signs. 

BACKGROUND: 

On November 18, 2015, the subject site was issued a building permit (PD# 01402) for the installation of a new side-
by-side drive-thru. The drive-thru menu boards are a total of 47.43 square feet, with two installations equaling 94.87 
square feet. Currently, the location has a total aggregate of 327.27 square feet, which exceeds the maximum allowed 
(250) by 77.27 square feet and includes one (1) freestanding sign, one (1) building sign and two (2) menu boards 
(See Exhibit E—Existing Signage Plans). 

SURROUNDING LAND USES/ZONING: 

 ZONING: LAND USE: 

NORTH: CR (Commercial Retail)  Food Service Facilities, Retail Facilities  

SOUTH: CR (Commercial Retail) Food Service Facilities, Retail Facilities 

EAST: CR (Commercial Retail) Food Service Facilities, Retail Facilities 

WEST CR (Commercial Retail) Food Service Facilities, Retail Facilities 

The subject property is located in the CR (Commercial Retail) zoning district and surrounding parcels include mixed 
uses, such as restaurants and retail facilities, including Statesboro Mall, Buffalo Wild Wings and Statesboro Square 
Shopping Center (See Exhibit A—Location Map, Exhibit B—Future Development Map and Exhibit C—Photos of 

Subject Site). 



 

Page 2 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

The subject site lies within the “Activity Centers/Regional Centers” character area as identified by the City of 

Statesboro Future Development Map within the City of Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan.  The “Activity 

Centers/Regional Centers” character areas are currently dominated by auto-oriented design and large surface 

parking lots. The Activity Centers will evolve into pedestrian-oriented shopping, office, and entertainment places that 

may also accommodate high-density residential development. Where excess parking is located, infill development 

can break up large surface lots. Tree plantings and landscaping will be generous to soften the development intensity 

in these areas. Access to these activity centers will be easily achieved for pedestrians, cyclists, and drivers alike (See 

Exhibit B – Future Development Map). 

Some appropriate land uses for the “Activity Centers/Regional Centers” character area include the following: 

 Small, mid-size, and regional retail and commercial, including big box stores. 

 Redeveloped shopping center should be encouraged to include diverse uses and pedestrian-scaled 
elements. 
  

Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan, Community Agenda page 25. 

In addition, the Future Development Map and Defining Narrative section of the Comprehensive Plan states the 
following:  

“Statesboro residents have expressed dissatisfaction with a variety of features in the community which clutter 
streetscapes and obstruct natural landscape features -particularly on major corridors entering and exiting the 
community. While City leadership has acknowledged the need to comprehensively update land development 
regulations to holistically address aesthetic concerns, there exist a number of individual topics which can be 
addressed by ordinance amendments in the short-term. Signs (attached and detached) should be managed by 
incorporating uniform design features, and by restricting billboards and other off-premise signage which 
distract from traffic control signage and compete with local and other on-site businesses.” 

Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan, Community Agenda page 11. 

ANALYSIS: 

I. V 17-02-02: Variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 4: Sign District 2 Dimensional 
Standards to permit an increase in the maximum aggregate sign area.  

 
The applicant is requesting a variance from Article XV (Signs) regarding the maximum aggregate sign area.  The 
subject site is located in the CR (Commercial Retail) zoning district and is regulated by the dimensional standards of 
Sign District 2 (See Exhibit D—Section 1509(C) Table 4).  Article XV (Signs) Section 1509 of the Statesboro Zoning 
Ordinance regulates the dimensional standards for all freestanding and building signs within the City of Statesboro.  
 
Additionally, Section 1501(1) of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance defines “Aggregate Sign Area” as “the combined sign 
area of all signs regardless of whether or not the signs require a permit, or where specified, all signs of a particular 
category, on a single parcel”. For individual business establishments on an individual lot within Sign District 2, the 
maximum aggregate sign area for all signs (combined freestanding and building) on the property is 250 square feet. 
Please note that the maximum allowable aggregate sign area does not allow a parcel to maximize the available wall 
signage and freestanding signage available for each parcel, but rather forces an allocation between the two. 
 
The applicant’s intention is to increase the maximum aggregate sign area from the permissible 250 square feet to 321.1 
square feet.  It should be noted that the applicant received a building permit for the installation of a side-by-side drive-
thru at the location on November 18, 2015. As currently permitted, the subject site’s aggregate sign area is 327.27 
square feet, which exceeds the maximum 250 aggregate sign area by 77.27 square feet.  
 

Sign District 2 Regulations Currently Permitted Requested 
Freestanding Signs: One sign 
structure per road frontage not to 
exceed 150 square feet and a 
maximum height of 20’ 

One (1) 33.25’ (minimum) high pole 
sign with 178.33 sq. ft. sign area 

The applicant will not remove this 
sign and will begin repair work to 
existing damage 

Building Signs: One per building 
elevation not to exceed 125 
square feet  

One (1) 67 square feet building sign  
 

Removal of existing 67 square 
feet building sign and installation 
of one (1) 32.83 sq. ft. wordmark 
and two (2) 14 sq. ft. arch logos  

Other: The ordinance is silent on 
drive-thru signage designed to 
facilitate the sales process 
No sign permit needed 

Two (2) 40.96 sq. ft. drive-thru menu 
boards totaling 81.93 sq. ft.  

 

TOTAL 327.27 sq. ft. (Aggregate) 321.1 sq. ft. (Aggregate)  



 

Page 3 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

Section 1503(G) states that no variances shall be permitted from the terms of Article XV regarding signs in the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance. It continues to state that “Specifically, no variances under article XVIII of this ordinance 
[chapter] shall be applicable to the standards contained within this article.” However, Article XV regarding signs is part 
of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, which provides for the award of variances by the City Council from the zoning 
regulations stating that “approval of a variance must be in the public interest, the spirit of the ordinance must be 
observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done” and Section 1801 states that the Mayor 
and Council [should] consider if the following are true in its consideration of a variance request: 

 
1. There are special conditions pertaining to the land or structure in question because of its size, 

shape, topography, or other physical characteristic and that condition is not common to other 
land or buildings in the general vicinity or in the same zoning district; 

o There are no special conditions. 
 

2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 

3. The application of the ordinance to this particular piece of property would create an 
unnecessary hardship; and 

o There is no proven hardship. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the 
purposes and intent of the zoning regulations. 

 
 

II. V 17-02-03: Variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 4: Sign District 2 Dimensional 
Standards to permit the installation of two (2) wall signs on one elevation.  

 

The applicant is requesting a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 4 to permit the installation of two (2) walls 
signs on one building elevation. The ordinance prohibits the installation of two (2) walls signs unless one (1) sign is in 
the form of a canopy/awning (See Exhibit D—Section 1509(C) Table 4).     
 

Section 1503(G) states that no variances shall be permitted from the terms of Article XV regarding signs in the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance. It continues to state that “Specifically, no variances under article XVIII of this ordinance 
[chapter] shall be applicable to the standards contained within this article.” However, Article XV regarding signs is part 
of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, which provides for the award of variances by the City Council from the zoning 
regulations stating that “approval of a variance must be in the public interest, the spirit of the ordinance must be 
observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done” and Section 1801 states that the Mayor 
and Council [should] consider if the following are true in its consideration of a variance request: 

 
1. There are special conditions pertaining to the land or structure in question because of its size, 

shape, topography, or other physical characteristic and that condition is not common to other 
land or buildings in the general vicinity or in the same zoning district; 

o There are no special conditions. 
 

2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 

3. The application of the ordinance to this particular piece of property would create an 
unnecessary hardship; and 

o There is no proven hardship. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the 
purposes and intent of the zoning regulations. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends approval of applications V 17-02-02 and V 17-02-03. 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

At its regularly scheduled meeting on March 7, 2017, the Planning Commission voted 5 to 0 to approve the variance 

requested by applications V 17-02-02 and V 17-02-03.  



 

Page 4 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT A:  LOCATION MAP 
 

 

 

  



 

Page 5 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT B: FUTURE DEVELOPMENT MAP 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 6 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE 

 

Picture 1 Subject Site Front Elevation facing Northside Drive East 

 

Picture 2 Subject Site Non-Drive-thru Side facing Parking Lot and Lovett Road 



 

Page 7 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE (CONT) 

 

Picture 3 Drive-thru Menu Boards and Related Signage 

 

Picture 4 Drive-thru Signage facing Buffalo Wild Wings 

 

  



 

Page 8 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE (CONT) 

 

Picture 5 Rear of Subject Site Depicting Menu Boards 

 

Picture 6 Rear Elevation of Subject Site 

  



 

Page 9 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT D: SECTION 1509 TABLE 4 

 

 
 

  



 

Page 10 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT E: EXISTING SIGNAGE PLANS 

 

 
Picture 7 Pole Sign Installation 33.25’ high and 178.33 sq. ft. Sign Area 

 

 



 

Page 11 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT E: EXISTING SIGNAGE PLANS (CONT) 

Picture 8 Original Building Sign Installation on Front Elevation at 67 sq. ft. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 12 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT E: EXISTING SIGNAGE PLANS (CONT) 

 

Picture 9 Menu Board at 40.96 sq. ft. (two installations total 91.93 sq. ft.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 13 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-02 & V 17-02-03 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT F: PROPOSED SIGNAGE PLANS 

 

 

Picture 10 Proposed Signage: Two (2) 14 sq. ft. arch logos and one (1) 32.83 sq. ft. wordmark 



 
 CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 

STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 

Robert Cheshire, P.E.,  

Deputy City Manager 

Sue Starling, City Clerk 

 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum 

Sam Lee Jones 

Jeff Yawn 

John C. Riggs 

Travis L. Chance 

 

 

 

To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager and Sue Starling, City Clerk 

 

From: Candra Teshome, Planning & Development Specialist 

 

Date: March 9, 2017 

 

RE: March 21, 2017 City Council Agenda Item 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Zoning Ordiance: Variance 

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the variances requested by 

applications V 17-02-04 and V 17-02-05.  

 

Background: Nick Stein requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) 

Table 5 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum aggregate 

sign area in Sign District 3 for 810 Archway Drive (Tax Parcel MS74 000198 007) 

and a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 5 of the Statesboro Zoning 

Ordinance regarding the maximum number of building signs allowed per 

elevation in Sign District 3 for 810 Archway Drive (Tax Parcel MS74 000198 007). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: Travis Chance (District 5) 

 

Attachments: Development Services Report V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 



 

 
City of Statesboro – Department of Planning & Development  

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

P.O. Box 348     (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia   30458           (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

VARIANCE REQUESTS 

810 ARCHWAY DRIVE 

LOCATION: 810 Archway Drive 

 

REQUEST: 

Variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) 

Table 5 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance 

regarding the maximum aggregate sign area 

and the maximum number of building signs 

allowed per elevation in Sign District 3.  

APPLICANT: Nick Stein 

OWNER(S): 
McDonald’s Corporation, a Delaware 

Corporation 

ACRES: 1 acre 

PARCEL TAX  

MAP #: 
MS74 000198 007 

COUNCIL        

DISTRICT:            
District 5 (Chance) 

   

PROPOSAL: 

The applicant requests a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 5 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance 
regarding the maximum aggregate sign area and the maximum number of building signs allowed per elevation in Sign 
District 3 (See Exhibit A – Location Map). The applicant would like to remove the existing 67 square foot wall sign and 
replace it with an updated wordmark and building arch, with one elevation receiving two (2) signs (See Exhibit F—

Proposed Signage Plans). 

BACKGROUND: 

The applicant would like to upgrade signage at the location and the subject site currently contains two (2) major 
signs: one (1) freestanding road sign and one (1) building sign. In addition, the site contains two menu boards and 
directional signage. The freestanding road sign is 20 feet high and contains an 80 sq. ft. static marquee and a 28 sq. 
ft. changeable copy sign. The drive-thru menu boards are a total of 47.43 square feet apiece, with two installations 
equaling 94.87 square feet. Currently, the location has a total aggregate of 269.87 square feet, which exceeds the 
maximum allowed (150) by 119.87 square feet (See Exhibit E—Existing Signage Plans). 

SURROUNDING LAND USES/ZONING: 

 ZONING: LAND USE: 

NORTH: CR (Commercial Retail)  Food service facilities, retail facilities  

SOUTH: CR (Commercial Retail) Food service facilities, retail facilities  

EAST: R4 (High Density Residential District) Single-family attached dwelling units 

WEST CR (Commercial Retail) Food service facilities, retail facilities  

The subject property is located in the CR (Commercial Retail) zoning district and surrounding parcels include mixed 
uses, such as restaurants and retail facilities, single-family attached dwelling units, a hotel and grocery store, including 



 

Page 2 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

the newly opened Panda Express, Walmart Neighborhood Market and the Hampton Inn (See Exhibit A—Location Map, 
Exhibit B—Future Development Map and Exhibit C—Photos of Subject Site). 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

The subject site lies within the “Activity Centers/Regional Centers” character area as identified by the City of 

Statesboro Future Development Map within the City of Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan.  The “Activity 

Centers/Regional Centers” character areas are currently dominated by auto-oriented design and large surface 

parking lots. The Activity Centers will evolve into pedestrian-oriented shopping, office, and entertainment places that 

may also accommodate high-density residential development. Where excess parking is located, infill development 

can break up large surface lots. Tree plantings and landscaping will be generous to soften the development intensity 

in these areas. Access to these activity centers will be easily achieved for pedestrians, cyclists, and drivers alike (See 

Exhibit B – Future Development Map). 

Some appropriate land uses for the “Activity Centers/Regional Centers” character area include the following: 

 Small, mid-size, and regional retail and commercial, including big box stores. 

 Redeveloped shopping center should be encouraged to include diverse uses and pedestrian-scaled 
elements. 
  

Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan, Community Agenda page 25. 

In addition, the Future Development Map and Defining Narrative section of the Comprehensive Plan states the 
following:  

“Statesboro residents have expressed dissatisfaction with a variety of features in the community which clutter 
streetscapes and obstruct natural landscape features -particularly on major corridors entering and exiting the 
community. While City leadership has acknowledged the need to comprehensively update land development 
regulations to holistically address aesthetic concerns, there exist a number of individual topics which can be 
addressed by ordinance amendments in the short-term. Signs (attached and detached) should be managed by 
incorporating uniform design features, and by restricting billboards and other off-premise signage which 
distract from traffic control signage and compete with local and other on-site businesses.” 

Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan, Community Agenda page 11. 

ANALYSIS: 

I. V 17-02-04: Variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 5: Sign District 3 Dimensional 
Standards to permit an increase in the maximum aggregate sign area.  

 
The applicant is requesting a variance from Article XV (Signs) regarding the maximum aggregate sign area.  The 
subject site is located in the CR (Commercial Retail) zoning district and is regulated by the dimensional standards of 
Sign District 3 (See Exhibit D—Section 1509(C) Table 5).  Article XV (Signs) Section 1509 of the Statesboro Zoning 
Ordinance regulates the dimensional standards for all freestanding and building signs within the City of Statesboro.  

 
Additionally, Section 1501(1) of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance defines “Aggregate Sign Area” as “the combined sign 
area of all signs regardless of whether or not the signs require a permit, or where specified, all signs of a particular 
category, on a single parcel”. For individual business establishments on an individual lot within Sign District 3, the 
maximum aggregate sign area for all signs (combined freestanding and building) on the property is 150 square feet. 
Please note that the maximum allowable aggregate sign area does not allow a parcel to maximize the available wall 
signage and freestanding signage available for each parcel, but rather forces an allocation between the two. 
 
The applicant’s intention is to increase the maximum aggregate sign area from the permissible 150 square feet to 277.7 
square feet.  As currently permitted, the subject site’s aggregate sign area is 269.87 sq. ft., which exceeds the 
maximum 150 aggregate sign area by 119.87 square feet.  
 

Sign District 3 Regulations Currently Permitted Requested 
Freestanding Signs: One sign 
structure per road frontage not to 
exceed 60 sq. ft., max height of 20’ 

One (1) 20’ high pole sign with 
108 sq. ft. sign area 

The applicant will not remove this sign and will begin repair 
work to existing damage 

Building Signs: One per building 
elevation not to exceed 50 sq. ft.  

One (1) 67 sq. ft. building sign  
 

Removal of existing 67 sq. ft. building sign and installation  
of one (1) 32.83 sq. ft. wordmark and three (3) 14 sq. ft. arch 
logos  

Other: The ordinance is silent on 
drive-thru signage designed to 
facilitate the sales process 
No sign permit needed 

Two (2) 40.96 sq. ft. drive-thru 
menu boards totaling 81.93 sq. ft.  

 

TOTAL 269.87 sq. ft. (Aggregate) 277.7 sq. ft. (Aggregate)  



 

Page 3 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

Section 1503(G) states that no variances shall be permitted from the terms of Article XV regarding signs in the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance. It continues to state that “Specifically, no variances under article XVIII of this ordinance 
[chapter] shall be applicable to the standards contained within this article.” However, Article XV regarding signs is part 
of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, which provides for the award of variances by the City Council from the zoning 
regulations stating that “approval of a variance must be in the public interest, the spirit of the ordinance must be 
observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done” and Section 1801 states that the Mayor 
and Council [should] consider if the following are true in its consideration of a variance request: 

 
1. There are special conditions pertaining to the land or structure in question because of its size, 

shape, topography, or other physical characteristic and that condition is not common to other 
land or buildings in the general vicinity or in the same zoning district; 

o There are no special conditions. 
 

2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 

3. The application of the ordinance to this particular piece of property would create an 
unnecessary hardship; and 

o There is no proven hardship. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the 
purposes and intent of the zoning regulations. 

 
 

II. V 17-02-05: Variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 4: Sign District 2 Dimensional 
Standards to permit the installation of two (2) wall signs on one elevation.  

 

The applicant is requesting a variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 4 to permit the installation of two (2) wall 
signs on one building elevation. The ordinance prohibits the installation of two (2) walls signs unless one (1) sign is in 
the form of a canopy/awning (See Exhibit D—Section 1509(C) Table 5 and Exhibit F—Proposed Signage Plans).     
 

Section 1503(G) states that no variances shall be permitted from the terms of Article XV regarding signs in the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance. It continues to state that “Specifically, no variances under article XVIII of this ordinance 
[chapter] shall be applicable to the standards contained within this article.” However, Article XV regarding signs is part 
of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, which provides for the award of variances by the City Council from the zoning 
regulations stating that “approval of a variance must be in the public interest, the spirit of the ordinance must be 
observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done” and Section 1801 states that the Mayor 
and Council [should] consider if the following are true in its consideration of a variance request: 

 
1. There are special conditions pertaining to the land or structure in question because of its size, 

shape, topography, or other physical characteristic and that condition is not common to other 
land or buildings in the general vicinity or in the same zoning district; 

o There are no special conditions. 
 

2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 

3. The application of the ordinance to this particular piece of property would create an 
unnecessary hardship; and 

o There is no proven hardship. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the 
purposes and intent of the zoning regulations. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends approval of applications V 17-02-04 and V 17-02-05. 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

At its regularly scheduled meeting on March 7, 2017, the Planning Commission voted 5 to 0 to approve the variance 
requested by applications V 17-02-04 and V 17-02-05. 
  



 

Page 4 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT A:  LOCATION MAP 
 

 

 

  



 

Page 5 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT B: FUTURE DEVELOPMENT MAP 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 6 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE 

 

Picture 1 Subject Site Front Elevation facing Fair Road Depicting Sign to be Replaced 

 

Picture 2 Subject Site Drive-thru Elevation facing Parking Lot 



 

Page 7 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE (CONT) 

 

Picture 3 Rear Elevation and Directional Signage 

 

Picture 4 Side Elevation 

 

  



 

Page 8 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT C: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE (CONT) 

 

Picture 5 Freestanding Sign and Directional Signage 

  



 

Page 9 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT D: SECTION 1509 TABLE 5 

 

 
 

  



 

Page 10 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT E: EXISTING SIGNAGE PLANS 

 

 
Picture 6 Pole Sign Installation 20’ high and 108 sq. ft. of Sign Area 

 

 

  



 

Page 11 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT E: EXISTING SIGNAGE PLANS (CONT) 

Picture 7 Original Building Sign Installation on Front Elevation at 67 sq. ft. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 12 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT E: EXISTING SIGNAGE PLANS (CONT) 

 

Picture 8 Menu Board at 43.46 sq. ft. (two installations total 87.28 sq. ft.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 13 of 13 

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
Case # V 17-02-04 & V 17-02-05 

February 27, 2017 

Updated: March 9, 2017 

EXHIBIT F: PROPOSED SIGNAGE PLANS 

 

 

Picture 9 Proposed Signage: Two (2) 14 sq. ft. arch logos and one (1) 32.83 sq. ft. wordmark 



 
 CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 

STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 

Robert Cheshire, P.E.,  

Deputy City Manager 

Sue Starling, City Clerk 

 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum 

Sam Lee Jones 

Jeff Yawn 

John C. Riggs 

Travis L. Chance 

 

 

 

To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager and Sue Starling, City Clerk 

 

From: Candra Teshome, Planning & Development Specialist 

 

Date: March 9, 2017 

 

RE: March 21, 2017 City Council Agenda Item 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Zoning Ordiance: Special Exception 

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the special exception 

requested by application SE 17-02-01.  

 

Background: Marilyn Knight requests a special exception to utilize the property 

located at 404 North Avenue as a childcare center with a capacity of fifty-two 

(52) children in the R8 zoning district (Tax Parcel MS40 000051 000). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: Sam Lee Jones (District 2) 

 

Attachments: Development Services Report SE 17-02-01 



  

 

 

 

 

City of Statesboro – Department of Community Development  

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

P.O. Box 348     » (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia   30458  » (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

SE 17-02-01 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUEST 

404 NORTH AVENUE 

LOCATION: 404 North Avenue 

 

REQUEST: 

Special exception to utilize the property 

located at 404 North Avenue as a childcare 

center with a capacity of fifty-two (52) children 

in the R8 zoning district. 

APPLICANT: Marilyn Knight 

OWNER(S): Mary Williams 

LAND AREA: .45 acres 

PARCEL TAX  

MAP #s: 
MS40 000051 000 

COUNCIL        

DISTRICT:            
District 2 (Jones) 

   

PROPOSAL: 

The applicant requests a special exception to utilize the property located at 404 North Avenue as a daycare center with 
a capacity of fifty-two (52) children in the R8 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district, which is not a permissible use 
by right (Tax Parcel MS40 000051 000).   

Pursuant to Article VII-B Section 701-B(I), a child care is permissible in the R8 (Single-Family Residential) zoning 
district as a home occupation, not to exceed six (6) children at a time (See Exhibit A—Location Map). In addition, 

Article XXVII Section 2704 prohibits daycare centers from “all zoning classifications except Commercial Retail, Highway 
Oriented Commercial, Central Business District, or Light Industrial.” Consequently, the applicant’s desired utilization of 
the property is not permitted without either the rezoning of the property or the granting of a special exception permitting 
the requested use. Residents in the neighborhood support the opening of a new childcare center (See Exhibit C—

Owner Letter and Neighborhood Support for a New Childcare).   

BACKGROUND: 

The property owner, Ms. Mary Williams, ran the facility for 31 years with a capacity of fifty-eight (58) children. 
Occupational Tax Certificate 2010 000789 was issued January 1, 2010 to Mary Williams and expired 12/31/2010. 
The daycare center was closed in 2009, reopened in 2013 under new management and closed again in 2015, and at 
this time, the facility has exceeded the twelve-month grandfather clause (see Article XXI Section 2104). The center is 
equipped to provide care to children aged six (6) weeks of age through four years of age, to include pre-kindergarten 
classes. 

SURROUNDING LAND USES/ZONING: 
 

 ZONING: LAND USE: 

NORTH: R8 (Single-Family Residential) Single-Family detached dwelling units 

SOUTH: R8 (Single-Family Residential) Single-Family detached dwelling units 

EAST: R8 (Single-Family Residential) Single-Family detached dwelling units 

WEST R8 (Single-Family Residential) Single-Family detached dwelling units 



 

Page 2 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

The subject property is adjacent to 707 West Jones Avenue, which is directly associated with the subject site. Mary 
Williams lived at the residence at 707 West Jones Avenue, and currently rents the property to the individuals who would 
run the daycare facility. Adjacent properties to the north, south, east and west are zoned R8 (Single-Family Residential) 
and contain single-family detached dwelling units. (See Exhibit B—Photos of Subject Site and Surrounding Properties).  

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

The subject site lies within the “Residential Redevelopment” character area as identified by the City of Statesboro 2014 
Future Development Map (See Exhibit C—2014 Future Development Map) within the City of Statesboro Updated 2014 

Comprehensive Plan.  

Vision:  

This character area has most of its original housing stock in place, but has worsening housing conditions due to low 
rates of homeownership and neglect of property maintenance. There may be a lack of neighborhood identity and 
gradual invasion of different type and intensity of use that may not be compatible with the neighborhood residential use, 
or a neighborhood that has declined sufficiently that housing conditions are bad, there may be large areas of vacant 
land or deteriorating, unoccupied structures. 
 

Appropriate Land Uses: 

 Single-family detached housing  

 Lower density, single-family attached housing  

Suggested Development Strategies: 

 The neighborhood should include a well-designed new neighborhood activity center at the appropriate 
location, which would provide a focal point for the neighborhood, while also providing a suitable location for a 
grocery store, hardware store, school, and similar appropriately scaled retail establishments serving 
neighborhood residents. 

Statesboro Updated 2015 Comprehensive Plan, Community Agenda page 21. 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES (EXCEPT TRANSPORTATION): 

The subject site is currently served by city services including water, sewer, sanitation, and public safety. No significant 
impact is expected on city services as a result of this request. 

ENVIRONMENTAL: 

The subject property does not contain wetlands and is not located in a special flood hazard area. Any potential issues 
will be brought forth and discussed during standard permitting and review procedures. 

ANALYSIS: 

The applicant requests a special exception to utilize the property located at 404 North Avenue as a childcare center 
with a capacity of fifty-two (52) children. The subject site is located in the R8 (Single-Family Residential) zoning 
district and the applicant’s requested use is only permitted in the HOC (Highway Oriented Commercial), CR 
(Commercial Retail), CBD (Central Business District) or LI (Light Industrial) zoning districts by right. 

Special exceptions allow for land uses that are not permitted by right within a zoning district, but which are defined as 
an acceptable use type, are of the same general character of permissible uses in the district, can meet the specific 
requirements contained in the ordinance and are listed as a special exception in the ordinance.  

I. Consideration of the Definition of the Applicant’s Proposed Use and its General Character 

The applicant is requesting to use the subject site as a daycare center with a capacity of fifty-two (52) 
children for a parcel zoned R8 (Single-Family Residential). Daycare centers of this capacity are not 
permissible uses by right within the R8 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  

Article XXVII Section 2703 states daycare center “…shall mean any place operated by a person, 
society, agency, institution, or group wherein are received for pay group day care for fewer than 24-
hours per day without transfer  or [of] legal custody of 19 or more children 18 years old or under.” 

Article VII-B Section 701-B(I) restricts the R8 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district to a family 
daycare homes only as a home occupation, not to exceed six (6) children at a time. The requested use 
meets the definition of a daycare center, pursuant to Article XXVII Section 2703. 

II. Consideration of the Proposed Use’s Ability to Adhere to the R8 Zoning District’s Requirements 

The applicant resides at 707 West Jones Avenue, the parcel adjacent to and directly south of the 
subject site. In the past, 707 West Jones Avenue served as Mary Williams’ primary residence and she 
managed the subject site as part of that parcel. The applicant intends to do the same.  



 

Page 3 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

While the applicant is requesting the use of the subject site as a daycare center with a capacity of fifty-
two (52) children, the center itself is a residential, multi-room structure; not on the scale of a facility. 
Staff is of the opinion the proposed use will adhere to the district’s requirements.  

III. Consideration of the Proposed Use’s Inclusion in the R8 Zoning District as a Special Exception 

Article VII-B. R-8 Single Family Residential of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance states that a “child care, 
but not more than six children at a time,” is a permissible use by right in the zoning district. The article; 
however, does not provide for the grant of a special exception in the district. Article XXIV. Conditional 
Zoning of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance states that “property within any zoning classification may be 

rezoned subject to conditions…” 

The American Planning Association encourages the use of local planning policies that ensure adequate 
childcare, especially in communities that have supply gaps for infant/toddler care facilities.  APA Policy 
Guide on the Provision of Child Care (1997, September 21) from 
https://www.planning.org/policy/guides/adopted/childcare.htm. 

The Statesboro Zoning Ordinance permits the grant of a special exception upon a finding by the governing body that 
the requested use is “of the same general character” as those uses permitted within the district without the grant of a 
special exception and requires that “in determining the compatibility of the conditional use with adjacent properties 
and the overall community, the mayor and city council (will) consider the same criteria and guidelines [as for] 
determinations of amendments, as well as the following factors:” 

Section 2406 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance lists seven (7) factors that should be considered by Mayor 
and City Council “in determining compatibility” of the requested use with adjacent properties and the overall 
community for considerations of Conditional Use Variances, or Special Exceptions as follows: 

A. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impact of the 
proposed use to an acceptable level. 

B. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered or 
endangered. 

C. Off street parking and loading, and the entrances to and exits from such parking and loading, will be 
adequate in terms of location, amount, and design to serve the use. 

D. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use. 

E. The proposed use will not have significant adverse effect on the level of property values or the general 
character of the area. 

F. Unless otherwise noted, the site plan submitted in support of an approved conditional use shall be 
considered part of the approval and must be followed. 

G. Approval of a proposed use by the mayor and council does not constitute and [an] approval for future 
expansion of or additions or changes to the initially approved operation. Any future phases or changes 
that are considered significant by the planning commission and not included in the original approval are 
subject to the provisions of this section and the review of new detailed plans and reports for said 
alterations by the governing authority. 

 This request, if approved, is personal to the applicant. Any future changes to this proposal must be approved 
by City Council. 

 
Additionally, § 2406 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance also requires consideration of the following factors 
given for standards for determination in a zoning change in “balancing the promotions of the public health, 
safety, morality [morals] and general welfare against the right of unrestricted use of property” given in § 2007 
of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance”: 
 

A. Existing uses and zoning or [of] property nearby. 

B. The extent to which property values are diminished by the particular zoning restrictions. 

C. The extent to which the description of property values of the property owner promotes the health, 
safety, morals or general welfare of the public. 

D. The relative gain to the public, as compared to the hardship imposed upon the property owner. 

E. The suitability of the subject property for the zoned purposes. 

F. The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned, considered in the context of land 
development in the area in the vicinity of the property. 

G. The extent the proposed change would impact population density in the area, community facilities, 
living conditions in the area, traffic patterns and congestion, environmental aspects, existing and 
future land use patterns, and property values in adjacent areas. 

 
 



 

Page 4 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends approve of the use requested by application SE 17-02-01. 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

At its regularly scheduled meeting on March 7, 2017, the Planning Commission voted 5 to 0 to approve the special 

exception requested by application SE 17-02-01. 

  



 

Page 5 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT A: LOCATION MAP 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 6 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES 

 

Picture 1 Subject Site facing North East Depicting Childcare Center Exterior Entrances 

 
Picture 2 Subject Site facing North East Depicting Childcare Center Exterior Entrances 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 7 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES (CONT) 

 

Picture 3 Subject Site facing North East Depicting Childcare Center Exterior Entrances 

 

Picture 4 707 West Jones Avenue facing North East Depicting Portion of the Parking Lot 

  



 

Page 8 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES (CONT) 

 

 

Picture 5 Subject Site Depicting Playground Area  

 

Picture 6 Subject Site Depicting Playground Area   



 

Page 9 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES (CONT) 

 

Picture 7 Subject Site Depicting Playground Area  

 

Picture 8 Subject Site Facing East Depicting Rear Elevation  

  



 

Page 10 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES (CONT) 

 

Picture 9 Subject Site Facing North Depicting Playground and Adjacent Property on Jones Avenue 

 
Picture 10 Subject Site Depicting Playground and Adjacent Properties on Jones Avenue 

  



 

Page 11 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES (CONT) 

 

Picture 11 Subject Site Depicting Playground and Adjacent Property Facing North 

 

Picture 12 Interior of Subject Site Depicting Office 



 

Page 12 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES (CONT) 

 

Picture 13 Interior of Subject Site 

 
Picture 14 Interior of Subject Site Depicting Kitchen Area 



 

Page 13 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES (CONT) 

 

Picture 15 Interior of Subject Site 

 

Picture 16 Interior of Subject Site Depicting Infant Area  



 

Page 14 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES (CONT) 

 

Picture 17 Interior of Subject Site 

 

Picture 18 Interior of Subject Site 



 

Page 15 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT B: PHOTOS OF SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES (CONT) 

 

Picture 19 Interior of Subject Site 

 

Picture 20 Interior of Subject Site 



 

Page 16 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT C: OWNER LETTER AND NEIGHBORHOOD SUPPORT FOR NEW CHILDCARE 

 

 

  



 

Page 17 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT C: OWNER LETTER AND NEIGHBORHOOD SUPPORT FOR NEW CHILDCARE (CONT) 

 

  



 

Page 18 of 18 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

Case # SE 17-02-01 

February 28, 2017 
Updated: March 9, 2017 

 

EXHIBIT D: 2014 FUTURE DEVELOPMENT MAP 

 













RESOLUTION 2017-13 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT ACTIVE SHOOTER PLATE CARRIER AND 

BALLISTIC PLATES GRANT  
 

FOR THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 

THAT WHEREAS, on February 14th, 2017 the City of Statesboro received  a $8,000.00 
Grant for Active Shooter Plate Carriers and Ballistic Plates administered by the Statesboro 
Police Officers Foundation (SPOF), the Grant Number is SPOF 2017-01, funding 50% of the 
purchase of Active Shooter Plate Carriers and Ballistic Plates of the projects anticipated total cost as 
per the attached documents; and SPOF announced the availability of this matching grant, which 
may be utilized Active Shooter Plate Carriers and Ballistic Plates; and   
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia in regular session assembled this the 21st of March, 2017 hereby accepts the Grant for 
Active Shooter Plate Carriers. 
 

Adopted this 21st of March, 2017. 
 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
By: Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2017-14 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Statesboro declaring Statesboro as a 
Safe Inclusive and Welcoming City for All People. 

 

WHEREAS:  The City of Statesboro is committed to inclusion as a fundamental aspect of our 
community; and 

WHEREAS:   cities and towns are the best place to make inclusiveness an everyday priority; and 

WHEREAS:  local elected officials can and should lead the way forward in making 
inclusiveness a priority in America’s cities and towns; and 

WHEREAS:  an inclusive community promotes equal opportunity and fairness; and 

WHEREAS:  an inclusive community promotes citizen participation and engagement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: The City of Statesboro hereby reaffirms our 
 commitment to inclusion as a fundamental aspect of our community, pledges active 
 efforts to seek to achieve that goal and urges all citizens of The City of Statesboro to join 
 together to support this effort. 

 

RESOLVED this 21st day of March, 2017 

       CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 

 

          _____________________________                

                           By:  Jan J. Moore, Mayor 

    

                  _____________________________ 

                        Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk  







 


	03-21-2017 Council Agenda
	03-07-2017 Council minutes
	03-2017 Planning and Zoning Council Packet_3-21-2017
	03-2017-13 Memo Police
	03-2017-13 Grant Acceptance Resolution Plate Carriers
	03-2017-14 RESOLUTION  City of Statesboro
	03-2017 Senior Center CDBG Public Hearing Invitation 2
	03-2017-Senior Citizen letter

